
December 8, 2014 
Planning Commission Minutes       Page 1 of 4 

CITY OF PHOENIX PLANNING COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MONDAY, DECEMBER 8, 2014 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL/INTRODUCTION: Chair Summerhays called the 

Planning Commission Meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. In attendance were 
Commissioners George “Ike” Eisenhauer, Priscilla Atkin, David Lewin and Jason 
Couch, as well as Chair Summerhays. There was a quorum. Staff in attendance 
were Planning Director Matt Brinkley and Assistant Planner Steffen Roennfeldt.  

  
II. CHANGES TO THE AGENDA: None. 
 
III. CONSENT CALENDAR: 

 
A.  Approval of Minutes from October 27, 2014 - Regular Planning 
Commission Meeting;  
 
MOVED BY COMMISSIONER COUCH, SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER 
ATKIN, TO APPROVE THE MINUTES AS AMENDED FROM OCTOBER 27, 
2014 – REGULAR PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE AS FOLLOWS: 
AYES: Commissioner Atkin, Couch & Eisenhauer  
NAYS: 0  
ABSTENTIONS:  Commissioner Lewin & Chair Summerhays 
 
THE MOTION PASSED. 

 
IV. NEW BUSINESS:  

A. Public Hearing: LDC14-11, proposed amendment of the Phoenix 
Land Development Code to add Chapter 3.11 – Outdoor Lighting, and 
make minor revisions to Chapter 2.3.5, 2.4.4, 2.4.5, 2.5.9, and 2.6.9 to 
conform to the proposed amendment. 

 
Chair Summerhays opened the public hearing and asked if there were any 
conflicts of interest, ex parte contact or specific bias. There were none. 
Chair Summerhays asked members of the public if they had any reason to 
believe that any of these conditions existed. None were reported. Chair 
Summerhays turned to Mr. Brinkley for the Staff Report. Chair 
Summerhays explained the typical procedures of a public hearing. 
 
Mr. Brinkley explained why he thinks it is necessary to make changes to 
the current outdoor lighting standards in the Land Development Code.  
The proposed ordinance was closely based on a model ordinance written 
by the ‘International Dark Skies Association’ and the ‘Illuminating 
Engineers Society.’  



December 8, 2014 
Planning Commission Minutes       Page 2 of 4 

He went over the staff report and pointed out that the proposed ordinance 
is consistent and in compliance with the existing Land Development Code 
and Comprehensive Plan. 
 
He said that there will be two different ways to review proposed lighting for 
compliance with proposed standards: a ‘prescriptive method’ and a 
‘performance method;’ as explained in the staff report. 
 
Commissioner Lewin wanted to know who was notified about this public 
hearing. Mr. Brinkley said that he notified the Public Hearing in the usual 
manner and also posted it on the Planning Departments Facebook page.  
 
There was discussion about whether current lighting can be grandfathered 
in or if it all has to be replaced. Mr. Brinkley said that business will have 
fifteen years to bring their outdoor lighting up to the standards of the 
proposed ordinance. But, he added, that this ordinance will have to 
undergo legal review with the City’s attorney and some things like the 
amortization provisions may change before the ordinance can be 
considered by Council. 
 
Chair Summerhays opened the public hearing. There was no public input.  
 
Commissioner’s deliberation: During deliberation several items were 
discussed and changes were proposed. These changes will be reflected in 
the final ordinance that will be proposed to City Council. 
 
There were no further comments. 
 

MOVED BY COMMISSIONER COUCH, THE PROPOSED AMENDMENT OF THE 
PHOENIX LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE WITH MODIFICATIONS AS IDENTIFIED BY 
THE PLANNING COMMISSION IS IN THE PUBLIC INTEREST AND SHOULD BE 
RATIFIED BY THE PHOENIX CITY COUNCIL AFTER A DULY NOTICED PUBLIC 
HEARING HAS BEEN CONDUCTED. SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER 
EISENHAUER.  
 

ROLL CALL VOTE AS FOLLOWS: 
Ayes:  5 
Nays:  0 
 
THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 

 
B. Public Hearing: LDC14-11, proposed amendment of the Phoenix 

Land Development Code to add Chapter 3.11 – Outdoor Lighting, and 
make minor revisions to Chapter 2.3.5, 2.4.4, 2.4.5, 2.5.9, and 2.6.9 to 
conform to the proposed amendment. 

 



December 8, 2014 
Planning Commission Minutes       Page 3 of 4 

Chair Summerhays opened the public hearing and asked if there were any 
conflicts of interest, ex parte contact or specific bias. There were none 
reported by the other commissioners. Chair Summerhays also asked 
members of the public if they had any reason to believe any of these 
conditions existed. There were none. Chair Summerhays turned to the Mr. 
Brinkley for the Staff Report. Chair Summerhays explained the typical 
procedures of a public hearing. 
 
Mr. Brinley pointed out that the goal of this proposed ordinance is to make 
the sign ordinance content-neutral and fix some other discrepancies.  
 
Mr. Brinkley also explained the process of the proposed ‘Phoenix Public 
Arts Committee’ and how murals could be addressed using content 
neutral standards.  He also said that he would like to keep the public 
hearing open after today’s meeting to gather additional input from 
businesses in town. 
 
There was discussion about electronic message centers and video 
boards.  

 
Chair Summerhays opened the public hearing. There was no public input.  
 
Commissioner’s deliberation: During deliberation, several items and 
definitions were discussed and changes were proposed. 
 

CHAIR SUMMERHAYS SAID THAT THE PLUBLIC HEARING WILL CONTINUE AT 
THE NEXT PLANNING COMMISSION HEARING ON JANUARY 26, 2015. 

  
V. OLD BUSINESS: None. 

 
VI. PUBLIC COMMENT: None 

 
VII. COMMENTS FROM COMMISSIONERS: Commissioner Couch pointed 

out that now would be a good opportunity to let businesses in town know 
that changes will be coming. 

  
Commissioner Atkin said that she received some good information at her 
training session with the Planning Director. 

 
VIII. PLANNING DIRECTOR’S REPORT: Mr. Brinkley said that Arrowhead 

Ranch was sold and that he has already talked to the new owner’s 
representative.  
 
He also said that some other cities are doing their Urban Growth 
Boundary expansions and that they had a meeting recently to discuss 
strategy. Commissioner Lewin had two follow-up questions: His concern is 



December 8, 2014 
Planning Commission Minutes       Page 4 of 4 

that when the Fern Valley Interchange will be done, Medford will 
immediately expand along the south-east. He wanted to make sure that 
we keep an eye on that section.  He also wanted to know about the future 
plans for PH-1 and 1a? There was discussion. Mr. Brinkley said that in 
order to develop PH-1 and 1a, changes to the RPS plan may have to be 
made. At the same time, he does not want Phoenix to be penalized to 
have PH-1 and 1a. He said that we just have to make that really clear 
during the UGB amendment. 

 
IX. ADJOURNMENT:  Chair Summerhays adjourned the meeting at 8:55 p.m. 
 
 
 

         
Micki Summerhays, Chair    Matt Brinkley, Planning Director 


